
 
 

JEDO Board Meeting 

September 10, 2014 

6:00 P.M. 
 

City Council Chambers 

214 SE 8
th

 Street, 2
nd

 Floor 

Topeka, Kansas 
 

 

JEDO Board Members 
 

Shawnee County Commissioners  City of Topeka Governing Body 

Shelly Buhler District No. 1   Larry Wolgast  Mayor 

Kevin Cook District No. 2    Karen Hiller  District No. 1 

Bob Archer District No. 3   TJ Brown  District No. 2  

       Sylvia Ortiz  District No. 3 

       Denise Everhart District No. 4 

       Michelle De La Isla District No. 5 

       Chad Manspeaker District No. 6 

       Elaine Schwartz District No. 7 

       Nathan Schmidt District No. 8 

       Richard Harmon District No. 9 
 

JEDO Board Voting Members 
 

Shawnee County Commissioners  City of Topeka Governing Body 

Commissioner Shelly Buhler   Mayor Larry Wolgast  

Commissioner Kevin Cook   Deputy Mayor Denise Everhart  

Commissioner Bob Archer   Councilmember Karen Hiller 

      Councilmember Nathan Schmidt 
 

Public Comment.   Comment from members of the public shall be entertained on each actionable 

agenda item and at the end of each meeting.  Comment shall be limited to topics directly relevant 

to JEDO business.  Members of the public wishing to speak must notify the County Counselor’s 

Office (call 785-251-4042 or email megan.barrett@snco.us) before 5 p.m. on the date of the 

meeting.  This requirement shall not apply to items added during the meeting. 

 

Time limits.   Members of the public shall be limited to four minutes unless the Board, by 

majority vote, extends the limitation.  Debate, question/answer dialogue or discussion with 

Board members will not count towards the four minute time limitation.   
 

To make arrangements for special accommodations please call 785-368-3940.  A 48-hour 

advance notice is preferred. 

Page 1 of 77

mailto:megan.barrett@snco.us


 
 

JEDO Board of Directors Meeting 

Agenda for Wednesday, September 10, 2014 

6:00 p.m. 

 

Topeka City Council Chambers 

214 SE 8
th

 Street, 2
nd

 Floor 

Topeka, Kansas 
 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Action Item: Approval of May 14, 2014 JEDO Board meeting minutes. (Pgs. 3-23) 

 

4. Presentation: JEDO 2
nd

 Quarter Cash Statement, Betty Greiner, Director, Shawnee 

County Audit Finance. (Pg. 24-25) 

 

5. Action Item: JEDO 2013 Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report, Betty Greiner, 

Director, Shawnee County Audit Finance. (Pgs. 26-44) 

 

6. Presentation: Overview of 2nd Quarter Report, 2nd Quarter Financials and 3rd Quarter 

initiatives: GO Topeka staff.  (Pgs. 45-73) 

 

7. Action Item: Co-Worker/Maker Space Proposal: GO Topeka staff. (Pgs. 74-77) 

 

8. Public Comment. 

 

9. Adjournment. 

 

 

Public Comment.   Comment from members of the public shall be entertained on each actionable 

agenda item and at the end of each meeting.  Comment shall be limited to topics directly relevant 

to JEDO business.  Members of the public wishing to speak must notify the County Counselor’s 

Office (call 785-251-4042 or email megan.barrett@snco.us) before 5 p.m. on the date of the 

meeting.  This requirement shall not apply to items added during the meeting. 

 

Time limits.   Members of the public shall be limited to four minutes unless the Board, by 

majority vote, extends the limitation.  Debate, question/answer dialogue or discussion with 

Board members will not count towards the four minute time limitation.   

 

 

Page 2 of 77

mailto:megan.barrett@snco.us


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

ITEM #3 

  

Page 3 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
1 

 

Joint Economic Development Organization Board Minutes 

May 14, 2014 

 

City of Topeka Council Chambers, 214 SE 7
th
 Street, Topeka, Kansas, Wednesday, May 14, 2014. 

 

The Joint Economic Development Organization (JEDO) Board members met at 6:00 p.m. with the 

following voting Board members present: Shawnee County Commissioners Shelly Buhler, Bob Archer 

and Kevin Cook, City of Topeka Mayor Larry Wolgast, Deputy City Mayor Denise Everhart, City 

Councilmember Karen Hiller and City Councilmember Nathan Schmidt. 

 

The following nonvoting JEDO Board members were absent: City Councilmembers Sylvia Ortiz, 

Michelle De La Isla, Chad Manspeaker, Elaine Schwartz and Richard Harmon. 

 

Others present who presented and/or spoke before the Board:  Rich Eckert, Shawnee County Counselor; 

Betty Greiner, Shawnee County Financial Administrator; Brad Owen, CPA, Mize Houser & Company, 

P.A.; Morgan Padgett, CPA, Mayer Hoffman McCann, P.C.; Joseph Ledbetter, Attorney at Law; Carol 

Marples; Jim Mullins, Americans for Prosperity, Kansas; Doug Kinsinger, President/CEO of GO Topeka 

Partnership/Greater Topeka Chamber of Commerce; Molly Howey, Director of Business Development 

for GO Topeka; Jo Feldmann, Vice-President of Existing Business for GO Topeka; Glenda Washington, 

Vice-President of Entrepreneurial and Minority Business Development for GO Topeka and Scott 

Smathers, Vice-President of Economic Development for GO Topeka. 

 

ITEM NO. 3: ACTION ITEM: Approval of the April 2, 2014 JEDO Board meeting minutes. 
 

Commissioner Cook stated that we did receive an email earlier this afternoon from Lazone Grays who 

was unable to be here tonight due to some health issues.  He had asked for a change to the minutes.  He 

asked the JEDO Clerk, Megan Barrett if she could read those changes. 

 

Clerk Barrett indicated that the change requested is on page 16 of the minutes which currently reads: 

Councilman De La Isla moved to give Mr. Ledbetter an additional two minutes to speak.   This should 

read: Councilwoman De La Isla moved to give Mr. Grays an additional two minutes to speak.   

 

Commissioner Cook moved to make that change to the April 2, 2014 JEDO minutes.  Commissioner 

Archer seconded.  Following roll call vote, motion carried unanimously.   

 

Commissioner Archer moved to approve the April 2, 2014 JEDO Board meeting minutes as amended. 

Commissioner Buhler seconded. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated that before a vote has taken, he is aware of a few members of the public who 

have signed up to speak on this item.   

 

Clerk Barrett indicated that the first to speak would be Carol Marple, followed by Joseph Ledbetter.   

 

Public Comment:   

 

Carol Marple indicated that she has a correction to make on the minutes.  She doesn’t know what page 

number it is on but it is in regards to the cost of the house that GO Topeka bought, it said $21,000 and it 

was actually $221,250. 

 

Page 4 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
2 

 

Commissioner Cook indicated that would be on page 7, in the middle, or page 10 of 68 of the agenda 

packet.  That is near the lower half of that paragraph.  Commissioner Cook asked if it was Ms. Marple’s 

request that they correct the minutes to reflect the true amount.   

 

Ms. Marple responded that is correct. 

 

Commissioner Cook asked if Ms. Marple had any another corrections to the minutes. 

 

Ms. Marple responded that she had some statements about the minutes and questioned if this would be the 

correct time to do that. 

 

Commissioner Cook indicated yes it would. 

 

Ms. Marple stated that after the discussion on awarding Yantra some money, which was $100,000 that we 

might give them for incentives, she wanted to do some research on the company.  She spent 

approximately two hours doing research. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated that perhaps this comment might better fall under the public comment item on 

the agenda.  He is not meeting to cut her off but it would fit better under public comment since it is not a 

substantive discussion regarding the minutes being corrected. 

 

Ms. Marple questioned that if there is an incorrect statement in the minutes, does that fit. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated it would if a JEDO member made an incorrect statement.  But he would note 

that she did have a request for a change in the minutes which they can take up. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller moved to make that change to the April 2, 2014 JEDO minutes.  Commissioner 

Buhler seconded.   

 

Commissioner Archer indicated he had a point of information if he could.  He questioned where did the 

number Ms. Marple stated come from?  We are changing it from $21,000 to $221,250.  Is that a valid 

number?  Where did it come from? 

 

Commissioner Cook responded that he believes the representation is that what was Ms. Marple meant to 

have said or that she had said. 

 

Rich Eckert, Shawnee County Counselor indicated that the only thing he would point out is that the 

minutes are supposed to reflect what was said.  And we are confident that is the number that she said.  

That doesn’t mean that after the fact they should go back and correct the minutes so that a statement now 

changes.  We are confident the minutes are correct and that she said $21,000. 

 

Commissioner Cook responded given that information from legal counsel, that if the Clerk is confident 

that Ms. Marple said $21,000 as opposed to a different number.  There was a motion to amend and a 

second.  Does that change either the motion or the second? 

 

Councilwoman Hiller stated that seeing how that number could have been misunderstood and if the 

speaker thought that she had said the bigger number, she would just as soon have the number reflect the 

correct number so she is fine with the Motion that she made. 

 

Following roll call vote, motion carried 6-1 with Commissioner Archer dissenting 

 

Page 5 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
3 

 

 

Joseph Ledbetter, citizen of the County and business owner in the City.  He would like to speak on 

concerns he has on the minutes because he is not sure they accurately reflect what happened in the 

meeting and this all concerns Item #4 – possible action response to Request for Proposal for Economic 

Development Services, contractor selection, contract approval of a 3 year contract, a multi-year contract 

he might add.  The first paragraph he would want to note on the record talks about what Rich Eckert said 

that they had released an RFP and it’s been widely published and you can read that and he believes that is 

accurate based on KORA’s he has filed with them showing that, including across state lines where one of 

these RFPs were sent out.  The next page, #3, we get into discussing the RFP and whether there is an 

awardee of the RFP, although those words are not used those are the proper words he has been told by 

people who do a lot of these RFPs and have a lot of experience with them.  He is going to the paragraph, 

the fifth one down to Commissioner Cook. 

 

“Commissioner Cook asked if there were any other questions or comments on GO Topeka.  

Seeing none he asked Mr. Eckert legal counsel, would it be his recommendation to make a 

motion to accept the RFP and then go into contract negotiations regarding the term of the 

recipient, or all as one action.  Mr Eckert indicated it would be up to the Board but from a 

parliamentary standpoint they should probably do one thing at a time.” 

 

Then he goes into a red-lined contract and a contract instead of discussing and getting a vote on the RFP.  

What the minutes reflect, unless he has changed his mind about how he answered the question, was that 

we never voted on accepting the RFP from GO Topeka.  He wants the record to clearly reflect that it has 

not been accepted nor voted on. And he believes that raises a significant legal issue.  He certainly is 

willing to see if the County Counselor would change his mind and say perhaps we should vote on the 

RFP, even tonight.   

 

Mr. Eckert stated, again, these are the minutes.  The discussion should about whether the minutes are 

accurate. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter responded see nonresponsive.  Ok.  He doesn’t know what to do with this. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated noting for the record for the purposes of tonight for review of the minutes, if 

there are no other changes or corrections to the minutes.  There has been a motion to approve the minutes 

and a second, he thinks that brings them to voting on the minutes as amended. 

 

Following roll call vote, motion to approve the April 2, 2014 JEDO Board meeting minutes carried 

unanimously.   

 

ITEM NO. 4: PRESENTATION: JEDO 1
st
 Quarter Cash Statement and Project Spreadsheet – 

Betty Greiner, Director, Shawnee County Audit Finance. 

 

Betty Greiner, Financial Administrator for Shawnee County is here as Treasurer of the JEDO Finance 

Committee and has the JEDO Cash Statement for the 1
ST

 Quarter of 2014.  As in the packet and on the 

screen you can see that the receipts for the 1
st
 Quarter of the year were $4,069,384.34.  Of that 

$2,204,341.57 were sales tax receipts for the City of Topeka and $1,864,866.98 were sales tax receipts for 

Shawnee County.  We then scroll down to the payments that came out of the bank account.  To the City 

of Topeka we made a payment for the Topeka Blvd Bridge Debt Service in the amount of $3,240,650.  To 

Shawnee County we made a payment of $1,500,000 for the County Bridges, that is an annual payment 

and then we made a payment also to Shawnee County for the SE 45
th
 Street project from Adams to 

California in the amount of $790,965.50.  There were also payments to GO Topeka, the publication 

expense for the RFP and then bank charges.  So our total payments were $6,782,023.33.  This leaves us a 

Page 6 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
4 

 

balance at the end of March of $4,185,271.68.  She would be happy to answer any questions on this 

statement.  This is a cash statement. 

 

Commissioner Cook asked if there are any questions for Ms. Greiner?  

 

Mayor Wolgast stated that this is not specifically on here but is more of an informational question, if she 

would know.  Does she know how many more payments they have left on the Topeka Blvd Bridge?   

 

Ms. Greiner responded that she would hate to respond when she is not certain.  It is scheduled to go 

through 2016 she believes. 

 

Mayor Wolgast questioned whether it was bonded to go through the entire period. 

 

Ms. Greiner responded that again she is not certain so she would hate to give a definite answer on that and 

she would be happy to get back with him and let him know.     

 

Ms. Greiner indicated that the JEDO Finance Committee has also provided them a spreadsheet on the 

road projects.  This shows each of the road projects and the years and the cash flow of the expenditures of 

those projects.  As you look on the spreadsheet, the red column at the end shows the final amount, those 

projects have been completed and those are the final costs of those projects.  As you look at these 

spreadsheets, the top items are all projects that were handled by the County, the first two pages and then 

the 3
rd

 page are City projects.  You can see the total on the bottom of the 3
rd

 page, is the total per year that 

was spent on each project and then the total that they estimate will  be spent through the year 2016.  Tom 

Vlach, Director of Shawnee County Public Works, is also here to answer any questions on any of these 

specific projects. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated that he knows this is a lot of information that is put into a very condensed 

form.  If they wanted to go back to this later at another time to look at it, or if the public wants to go back 

and look at this, does she know where this would be accessible at or how they would be able to look at 

those records. 

 

Ms. Greiner responded that it would be part of the agenda packet for JEDO.  They could also put it on the 

County’s website, if they would want them to. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated he believes that would be helpful.  Looking around he is seeing heads 

nodding.  He knows often times, he reads the comments to newspaper articles and one of the reoccurring 

comments that tends to appear is “I don’t know where my money went.  I know that they went and did a 

lot of things but I don’t know how the money was spent.”  And a spreadsheet like this breaks it down, it is 

very usable and you can see exactly what projects were handled, when they were handled and what the 

costs were.  He thinks it would be good to have it on the County’s website. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller stated that she thinks this format has been used since this tax started and she really 

likes it.  She concurs with Commissioner Cook.  She thinks it is a good way when they are contemplating 

future projects, laying them out in this full timeline, full disclosure of the pieces has always been very 

helpful.  Periodically when there was a need to change something, it has been helpful because you can see 

the whole thing. 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
5 

 

ITEM NO. 5: PRESENTATION: Overview of 1
st
 Quarter Report, 1

st
 Quarter Financials and 2

nd
 

Quarter Initiatives – GO Topeka staff. 

 

Doug Kinsinger, President of GO Topeka stated that tonight they are just going to try to give them a 

couple of highlights.  They have agreed to keep this brief and focus on the things they think are most 

newsworthy for the Board.  He would like to cover a couple of items and then Brad Owen with Mize 

Houser who does the accounting for GO Topeka is here to cover some of the highlights of the financials.  

As is required by contract, they provide those financials to the Board on a quarterly basis and those are 

posted on the website.  Following that Molly Howey will cover some of their new market attractions, Jo 

Feldmann will cover existing business retention and expansion and workforce issues, Glenda Washington 

will cover some of their minority and small business activities and finally Scott Smathers will take clean 

up and see if there are any other questions at the end.   

 

He would like to mention a couple of things before turning it over. First of all, they have spoke 

before about air service but he would like to report to them that United Air service and Topeka’s 

support of that, the market is growing every month.  As we all know January and February was 

kind of a hard time to start as that was some of the coldest weather we had seen in the Midwest 

and some of the most flight cancellations they had seen in the airline industry in 20 years and we 

were subjected to the same problems as you saw around the nation.  But every month starting 

since January, our boardings have been improving every month and May is starting to do very 

well.  So we just want to remind the Topeka public and people in our region that we have two 

flights a day from Topeka on United one at 6 AM departing one at 3:45 PM departing.  Flights 

returning from Chicago here leave at 1 PM and also at 8:30 PM.  Our flights are kind of priced at 

the same model pricing structure as they are in Kansas City so we are very competitive and our 

parking is a bargain, it is $5.00 for as long as you want.   

 

The other item he would report to them, we have talked about the water and sewer extensions out 

of Kanza Fire Commerce Park. Those are coming close to completion.  If they recall, they 

allowed them to pay for all of those last year.  They negotiated and got a better price by 

negotiating one contract instead of separating that.  We saved quite a bit from doing that.  Those 

should be finish around the 2
nd

 week in June, the water and sewer extensions.  The gas extensions 

have already been finished  So we will have water, sewer and gas to we believe pretty much all of 

the area west, southwest in the Kanza Fire Commerce Park for the First Phase of Mars Chocolate.  

So if you see where the new Innovation Parkway is, and you will hear about the progress of that 

later tonight, we have gone around that road and to the west side of that property and that will be 

done in two weeks. 

 

Brad Owen, Mize Houser indicated that he would refer them to page 50 of the agenda packet.  He 

believes they have all three months of the 1
st
 Quarter but he will focus on March.  Page 50 is a statement 

of receipts and disbursements.  These are a modified cash basis.  You will see on that page a month 

Actual and Budget and also a YTD Actual and Budget, he is going to focus on the YTD set of columns.  

The largest expenditures for the quarter are related to the utility extensions that Mr. Kinsinger referred to.  

About $383,000 for those utility extensions so far.  We also had a payment to the Mars escrow account of 

about $159,000 and that relates to partial funding of the employment incentives.  If you look down the list 

of program expenses you will see that we are below budget on those program activities.  New business 

attraction which is the largest program expenditure so far.  Really the activities are below budget because 

the staff spent quite a bit of time responding to the RFP so there is still work to do there but some of it 

was deferred into the 2
nd

 Quarter.  And the staff tells him that there is a lot of activity in the 2
nd

 Quarter so 

we will probably see more expenditures coming.  Also in new business attraction, $34,000 was paid up 

front for advertising for 2014.  There were some discounts realized for paying for all those ads upfront.  

They also bought a Swiftsite database license fee which was about $10,000.  So those were the significant 

Page 8 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
6 

 

expenses in that quarter.  Business retention, really the staff has been busy in that area but as you can see 

again below budget.  There is really not any requirement to incur additional costs for special events or 

activities so those very may well occur later in the year.  Workforce development, again a budget variance 

of just over $50,000.  There was a scholarship payment that was budgeted to occur in the 1
st
 Quarter of 

$50,000 to Washburn Tech and that did not occur until April so you will see that coming through in the 

2
nd

 Quarter.  The research area, again GO Topeka was able to get discount on labor market data by paying 

the bill for 2014 at the end of 2013.  So while we budgeted that $10,000 payment for the 1
st
 Quarter, it is 

likely that will occur at the end of 2014 for the next year and the discount there was considerable so it was 

worth the accelerated payment.  Under EMBD expenses ran below budget for the quarter, the staff is 

working on a strategic plan for that area.  There was a little bit of training payment in the 1
st
 Quarter but 

most of that will happen later.  Small business innovation center, again the staff is working to develop the 

new program initiatives for that for the entrepreneurial support activities so we fully expect that money to 

go out and again it will be later in the year.  And then a smaller item, program revenue you can see is well 

ahead of budget.  GO Topeka actually received crop payments in January and the budget is more of a 

straight line budget for that item.   

 

Molly Howey, Director of Business Development for GO Topeka stated she would like to touch on a few 

items.  They can see some of the highlighted numbers in their packets.  Mr. Kinsinger already mentioned 

the marketing of air service and of course that is an awesome asset for us to have as we go out and market 

Topeka.  That is one of those things that is showing up on those RFPs that we receive are how close are 

we to the airports and do they offer commercial service so that is one thing that we are actually able to say 

yes on and we like to brag about that a little bit.  The infrastructure in Kanza Fire is moving right along 

and should be done mid-Summer.  Another thing, you all know that they worked very hard responding to 

the RFP in the 1
st
 Quarter so that really did take a lot of their time but it was a positive because it let them 

look at their program of work and evaluate things when they really weren’t planning on at that time and it 

was a great activity for the staff.   

 

For Quarter 2 they have been hitting the road hard building those relationships, talking to 

consultants and the companies that have active projects on hand.  As a result of that we have nine 

new projects already in the 2
nd

 Quarter and that is quite a bit.  Those are pretty much all over the 

board, a lot of manufacturing, some back office customer service and things like that.  Website 

redesign, you have heard us talk that we will be redesigning the website.  We are just about to 

start really digging in, we have evaluated some of our peers websites and kind of gotten an idea 

of what we want to do but we hope to have a preliminary plan in Quarter 3 that outlines 

everything that we are going to do for that.  And then the retail infill analysis, we acquired those 

databases and have actually had some individuals coming in and asking questions and we have 

been able to provide them information about how to best market those properties that are empty.  

So spread the word, tell people that we have that resource and we would like them to come in and 

ask more questions. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller stated that she is really pleased to hear about the retail infill and that is something 

she has been encouraging to see develop but she wasn’t aware that they had gotten software and were 

doing it.  What efforts have they made to let people know that they are now in that business and who do 

they talk to? 

 

Ms. Howey responded that to her knowledge, we haven’t really publicized that we have that resource. 

And we would be open to other ideas on how we can do that.  It is on their website. She asked if 

Councilwoman Hiller had any other ideas on publicizing that. 

 

 

Page 9 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
7 

 

Councilwoman Hiller stated yes.  If they recall, we did kind of a broad based downtown oriented 

partnership.  Put together a booklet of all the economic development incentives for downtown for 

businesses but on the building side.  Now she guesses it has been three years ago and then GO Topeka 

helped in partnership, put together a seminar downtown and invited all the potential stakeholders. It really 

went well and established those tools and that process in GO Topeka.  She would think when they are 

ready, something similar.  Where the retail infill comes in is on the neighborhood basis.  They do have a 

focus for East Topeka, there are little pockets all over.  She knows Councilman Manspeaker has been 

interested in doing stuff in his district along the arteries and she certainly has some in her district.  If they 

can put together something at some point and just invite everyone who is interested in how to do that, it 

would be great. 

 

Ms. Howey responded that is a great idea and they can get back with her and hopefully have something 

set up to do that. 

 

Jo Feldmann, Vice-President of Existing Business for GO Topeka stated she is also going to give some 

highlights.  What they see on the screen is their 1
st
 Quarter resorts and she has put on there Yantra 

Services expands in Topeka  That was a great announcement that we were able to do and they supported 

and the incentive offering to that company.  Very high tech, very high level positions that are being 

created in that company.  It is great that JEDO and GO Topeka could support them on that. Under general 

support you will see some of the activity that took place.  This is the core of her program which is 

existing business and that is being out there, working with our businesses on a daily and sometimes and 

hourly basis .  Also in the 1
st
 Quarter they started with an M-Tech training class, she did report that to 

them at the end of last year telling them a little bit about what that is.  It is the food manufacturers coming 

together and saying we need some core skills to be taught to some of our entry level positions.  And so 

they started working on that and she will report some of the 2
nd

 Quarter  developments of that.  But that 

program is well off the ground.  What spun from that is that three of our additional manufacturers, both 

large and medium sized manufacturers said they could really use this as well.  And so again we brought 

all of our partners together and she will report further on that as we move forward.  The last item is 

Manufacturers in the Classroom.  This spun out of a committee for manufacturing groups that just really 

never quite got off the ground and their core focus was getting in the classroom to start educating students 

about those careers.   

 

They just recently completed as part of the 2
nd

 Quarter, going to Reser’s Corporate Headquarters 

in Portland, Oregon, we were there last week.  Commissioner Cook joined them and they were 

really pleased to have him there and he added value to their meeting there and we learned lots of 

really good information.  Very excited about what Reser’s has and all of them have noticed the 

investment in East Topeka.  Moving on to Workforce Development, the M-Tech training class.  

She mentioned that we have three manufacturers that are developing a second program.   We 

were able to get some additional State funds to help scholarship students that are wanting to go 

into that course.  We will be meeting on the 22
nd

 to start going through all that curriculum to 

make sure it is well groomed for these additional other manufacturers that aren’t necessarily in 

the food manufacturing areas.  Manufactures in the Classroom, we have spent a lot of time  

developing slides.  We are presenting to high school students that will move both into Junior 

High and Elementary schools as this program fully develops.  Nine of those manufacturers said 

they want to be in the classroom with us and tell the students about the great things and so that is 

moving forward.  We had our first presentation to Auburn/Washburn.  Dr. Brenda Deitrich has 

been very instrumental in helping them get that program off the ground and then of course our 

partnerships with the businesses are just spot on.  They are 100% behind this program.  Moving 

along to the Scholarship Program Launch as part of GO Topeka’s Strategic Plan, we made the 

announcement of that $50,000 scholarship program.  What is great about that program is it is 

going to assist not only new students but existing students that are already in those high-demand 

Page 10 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
8 

 

career programs. We are thrilled and she knows that a lot of the students who are embarking in 

some of those careers are thrilled to have that additional assistance to move through those 

programs.  What we are expecting as far as the number of students in aide is about that 75 

students will actual experience some benefit from that scholarship.  And again she would be 

happy to share with any of them all of the different categories of those high-demand, high-wage 

careers as we move forward.  The last item is the Youth Project Initiative.  This Board brought up 

what can we do to help some of our youth in Topeka and so we started holding some meetings 

and what we found out is that there are a lot of programs out there.  And a lot of those programs 

aren’t necessarily talking to each other about some of the things that are happening.  And so what 

we decided after several meetings is that the Community Resource Council (CRC) is actually 

going to take the lead position on this particular program.  They are going to consolidate and 

understand exactly what is happening in the community and then GO Topeka and staff will start 

to meet and determine are there gaps that maybe we can help fill.  So that is very much still under 

development and hopefully we will have more to report to you at our next meeting. 

 

Councilman Schmidt asked on the Yantra Services expansion.  He believes it was the last meeting where 

we went over the incentive package and it was tiered.  Can she give any details of how they have gone 

with that.  Are they at the minimum or the maximum of that? 

 

Ms. Feldmann responded that incentive contract is performance based and so what we do is we look at it, 

we are always a year behind.  So they have this year to perform and so in 2015 we will look at their 

employment levels and we will make a determination what those wages are and we will use their State 

employment reports to determine how that incentive is paid out.  That incentive is set up to pay out 1/10
th
 

so if it is $5,000 a job, they will get $500 and that will carry out for a ten year period.  Does that answer 

the question? 

 

Councilman Schmidt stated it does he was interested in the structure of that incentive program and to see 

if it is something that maybe we would want to expand or more aggressively pursue. 

 

Ms. Feldmann stated that all of our incentive programs are performance based and so they have that year 

to perform and then we measure.  We are always a year behind on that measurement period. 

 

Mayor Wolgast asked on the M-Tech training classes, how many students are involved and if she could 

tell about the location where that is held. 

 

Ms. Feldmann responded that the M-Tech is the five food manufactures that wanted this program started.  

To date we have had 37 enrolled in that class and 6 have actually been hired by companies in Topeka.  It 

is held at Washburn Tech over on Huntoon. 

 

Mayor Wolgast stated he would just comment that Commissioner Cook and he were there for the program 

launch, the scholarship.  A very important program.  Also he strongly supports the Youth Project 

Initiative.  He is very interested in seeing how that can be developed and thinks that there is a need there.  

And a lot of it, as she has said, is the communication.  That we need to help get these groups together so 

that we know what is going on and how we can be helpful. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller questioned about the M-Tech and the Youth Project Initiative, really any of them.  

We have had some pretty strong statistics shared with us and some pretty compelling comments about 

affirmatively working toward getting minorities into these programs, particularly men.  Are there any 

affirmative elements to the recruiting of these new programs.   

 

Page 11 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
9 

 

Ms. Feldmann responded that when we developed that program we worked with each company to really 

define what are the criteria, mainly what can’t you hire, with their background.  And so what we did is we 

utilized the workforce center.  At that time Gina was with the workforce center, she has since left so we 

have a new individual who we are working with over there.  But they are actually going through those 

candidates and screening to make sure none of those backgrounds will kick them out from every having 

an opportunity to work.  Because companies require, you know there are certain backgrounds that 

companies simply will not hire from and so we are using the workforce center to draw those candidates 

into that program and to make those recommendations.  Now that doesn’t mean that if an individual hears 

about that program and goes straight to Washburn Tech that they can’t enroll in it but that individual is 

then referred to the workforce center to get that background done before.  We don’t want to send students 

through the class and then have them find out that they are not going to qualify for employment.  That 

was a long way to answer the question.  As far as any affirmative, she would assume that is something we 

have done but she can certainly check on that and get back to her. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller stated that she would encourage, and particularly with the Youth Project Initiative, 

to reach out to our young people when they are just getting into facing the prospect of that workplace and 

getting them hooked in, she thinks is important. 

 

Glenda Washington, Vice-President of Entrepreneurial and Minority Business Development for GO 

Topeka  would like to give them a brief update on everything they are doing at GO Topeka in reference to 

EMBD.  We have been, and a lot of them have heard this before, but we have been aggressively attacking 

this makerspace/co-work space opportunity because we think that there is a value added to the 

community.  So what we have done, we have begun working on a business plan that will be used as a tool 

to go out and help us identify possible sponsors to help us fund this activity.  We are also looking at a site.  

We have our eyes on a site, a building on Kansas Avenue.  It is out of construction at the moment but we 

know that it will be in construction but we feel confident that even though it is going to be in the line of 

construction that it is a needed commodity for the community and they will embrace it.  Also we are 

looking at funding opportunities so we are building a piece that we can take out and solicit for funding to 

support the makerspace/co-work space.  It is coming online and coming on fast.  People across the whole 

community are hearing it.  It is a buzzword and she is really embracing it and loving it.  We also looked at 

the Loan Fund.  And the first night that she came she told them that the Loan Fund just didn’t have 

enough power in it and that we needed to beef it up a little bit and so what we did is that the Loan 

Committee got together and they said we need to be able to provide monies that individuals need to grow.  

And so we beefed up the Loan Fund.  During the 1
st
 Quarter we decided if we had the person that had the 

capacity for the lending, we would loan them up to $100,000 and we also increased the Line of Credit up 

to $15,000.  So we are looking at that as a great opportunity for our community.  There are a lot of things 

coming on.  We are looking at how we can use this money to work projects out of the 501 piece and see if 

that will support us.  We will report a little more about this later on.  We are looking at a lot of 

opportunities to beef up this the lending of this Loan Fund project.   

 

When she first came to them she talked to them a little bit about procurement and opportunities to 

do business with the State, Federal and Local government.  So during the 1
st
 Quarter they looked 

at opportunities to plan a conference so in the Fall in October we will be planning a procurement 

conference and we are inviting buyers from all over the State and it is going to be an open 

opportunity for them to come in, for the small businesses to take a look at what opportunities they 

can bid on.  And in the interim we are doing training on how to get certified to do business with 

these government agencies, what they need to d, what sites they need to go on, we are bringing 

the PTAC people in from Wichita and they are helping us get ready for this opportunity.  We are 

preplanning this conference.  Also for community involvement, we have been very involved in a 

lot of activities; one that she is embracing this week finally is the Sumner Legacy, Brown v. 

Page 12 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
10 

 

Board of Education group.  So we are doing a number of things this week as a result of us 

planning through the 1
st
 Quarter.   

 

Upcoming in the 2
nd

 Quarter we have been really busy.  What she really wanted to do was find 

where the gaps were in the marketplace.  She told them they were going to do a survey and we 

finally did the survey.  The results are back and we are putting it all together so they will hear in 

the next report the results of that survey.  It will be out and about.  People will be hearing a little 

about it but she would like for them to know what the results are, where the gaps are and how are 

we going to address those gaps in the market.  Icehouse, we graduated 34 people out of the 

Icehouse Childcare class two weeks ago.  Out of those 34 people she thinks 4 of them have 

started a business - 2 service firms and 2 retail firms have already started.  Small Business 

Awards – she wants to thank all of them for what they did yesterday and made that day very 

special to a number of people, so thank you for being there.  We had a total of 285 people there 

which was a very large group and we were very pleased with the outcome.  The Women’s 

Initiative, we have started that in April, we kicked it off in the 2
nd

 Quarter and again in the Fall 

we will have a Women’s conference.  More to come on that, we are putting together what the 

skeleton will look like, how we are going to address some of the issues of women in the 

marketplace and women that are business owners.  We have done a number of community 

outreach opportunities and will explain some of those in detail at our next JEDO meeting because 

they happen at the end of the 2
nd

 Quarter.  And then with Procurement Initiatives, as she said, we 

are very aggressively involved in that procurement initiative.  We think that the growth of the 

small business community has a lot to do with how we grow our small businesses.  What we are 

going to do with these procurement initiatives is we are looking at working with USD 501 on this 

new bond issue to see what we can do to get them some micro-enterprises and small businesses to 

start doing business with them.  So we met with them today, that is a part of what we are doing is 

planning that strategy on how we can reach out to 501, help them market the training we can do 

for these small businesses and show them what it is that they need to do, what kind of forms, 

what kind of applications they need to get certified to do business with them.  So that is where we 

are on that and she is really excited for that opportunity.  We are really enjoying what is 

happening in this community.  It is Small Business Week so she wants all of them to go out and 

support a small business. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller stated that yesterday’s luncheon really was fabulous.  One of her favorite times of 

the year.  But Ms. Washington had Dean Sollars from Washburn make an announcement that she would 

like to be shared.   

 

Ms. Washington stated yes there is a new department, an entrepreneurial department, that is going to be 

launched at Washburn University and we are so excited and we will be working with them anyway they 

can.  It tells you the synergy that is going on in this community around small business and she thinks that 

finally we are embracing what really drives our community.  She is really excited about that, they will be 

working with Washburn; Rick Lejourn is going to be the leader of that initiative and he is all capable and 

you will see him going and coming and us doing things together.  That just speaks to where we are.  We 

are small business centric at the moment. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated that he would add that it was a sold out luncheon. 

 

Scott Smathers, Vice-President of Economic Development for GO Topeka is going to give them a couple 

of things, people have already started asking questions that goes along so that makes his job easier.  He 

wants to fill them in on Athene to start out.  We had another meeting with them today.  The job fair is 

looking to be July 17
th
 from 9am to 3pm and they will be marketing that and letting companies know 

about that so hopefully we will be able to get a lot of companies involved to help those people.  They 

Page 13 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
11 

 

have had people already go to some other companies so that is good news but we definitely need to take 

care of the rest that are still there.  As you can see by the presentations and what you have heard, you can 

tell we have been very focused on the strategic plan that was established.  We are going to continue to 

operate going down that road.  As they all helped them define back in December the emphasis of what we 

are really focusing on, we will continue to do so.  It doesn’t mean there won’t be exceptions, and we have 

had people from the community that have thrown out ideas or given them so thoughts that they need to 

work on and we will be factoring those in, but at the same time the strategic plan is really where we are 

going and we intend to keep following that roadmap until the JEDO says they would like to change the 

plan. 

 

Commissioner Cook requested regardless of whether we have voting members or nonvoting members, 

members of the council or maybe just the public at large, if there is a person who has an idea for how to 

grow economic development in Shawnee County, is the door open to GO Topeka? 

 

Mr. Smathers responded of course.  We are always open to listening what ideas they have.  It is like 

everything else.  There are always resource limitations associated that might come into play but that 

doesn’t mean that we don’t want to hear about it.  And just because we aren’t able to get on it 

immediately doesn’t mean it isn’t going on our list that we need to definitely consider and move forward 

as we continue to proceed. 

 

Commissioner Cook asked if it would also be a fair statement to say a lot of these new programs we have 

heard about tonight, things we have seen over the beginning of the year are reflective of the decisions that 

we made on the budget last year. 

 

Mr. Smathers replied absolutely.  And a lot of it was based off your input of what the JEDO Board gave 

them in regards to how they want GO Topeka to move forward and what they want them to focus on. 

 

Mayor Wolgast stated that at one of the City’s town hall meetings, after the public meeting ended a 

person came up and there was a group talking and they were asking about what our current average wage, 

when we try to get companies here, what is that.  And he knows it is listed on Page 4 but he would like 

Mr. Smathers to just talk about that a little bit.  Are we at the level of most communities in our area?  

What do we expect, what is our average wage and when we are looking at companies what do we hope 

that they would be paying. 

 

Mr. Smathers responded that it does vary somewhat by the type of business that is coming in so that does 

have an impact on what we look for.  As a community for the State of Kanas we are higher than many of 

the areas as far as our average wage goes.  We normally will look though from an incentive point of view, 

we normally would prefer the companies look at around at least $15 or more per hour, so a little more 

than $30,000 per year.  We also definitely look at benefits associated with it when we are looking at 

companies.  It doesn’t mean that is a rock hard rule by any means but we kind of ramp it up from there.  

Have we ever given incentives to companies that pay less than $15 per hour, sure.  Would we consider it, 

possibly, it depends on a lot of factors that come into play and once again the type of industry, how many 

people we are talking about and a lot of other factors, whether it is a target industry that we are focusing 

on.  But normally he would say we are looking at a minimum of $15 per hour and then we ramp up our 

incentives as that increases. 

 

Mayor Wolgast replied so with the benefits then that is something like $35,000-$40,000 per year. 

 

 

 

Page 14 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
12 

 

Mr. Smathers responded yes our average wage is probably closer to $19 or $20 per hour as far as what the 

market is doing.  He was talking about what is kind of their lower threshold that they look for as far as 

incentives.  But our average wage is probably closer to $19-$20 per hour.  When you look at benefits that 

can easily add another 30%-40% on top of a job for benefits associated with it. 

 

Mayor Wolgast questioned if that is comparable to other communities in Kansas, the Midwest when they 

are in the same business that you are in. 

 

Mr. Smathers replied he would say it really probably varies by communities to be honest with you.  A lot 

of communities, so much of it depends on what their existing market is.  For our market where our 

average wage is about $19-$20 that’s where we would be at.  If our average wage was more around     

$12-$13 it would be lower.  If our average wage was $25-$30 it would be higher.  It really depends if you 

go by market where they can be.  But for our market it is a pretty good fit, he believes. 

 

Councilman Schmidt stated that he expressed this last year in some of the meetings.  He is very interested 

in the procurement side of things.  From how he understands the program we looking at expanding the 

ability of people who produce here locally to get their products out to State governments to other 

industries that work here and we are promoting that.  Is there also an element of promoting to the larger 

industries that are here to source locally their products?  Sort of like a directory? 

 

Mr. Smathers responded yes they have talked about it.  And Ms. Feldmann and Ms. Washington are 

working together on some of that as well and that will be part of the Fall meeting as well. 

 

ITEM NO. 6: ACTION ITEM: GO Topeka 2013 Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report – 

Morgan Padgett, CPA, Mayer Hoffman McCann, P.C. 

 

Morgan Padgett, CPA with Mayer Hoffman McCann stated they were engaged to perform an audit of the 

2013 financial statements for GO Topeka.  She wants to take them through the highlights of two things.  

One is the audit report and the financial statements and two is the letter as auditors that is required to the 

Board.  She will start with the financial statements.  And the first thing she is wanting to point out in that 

is page 1 of our actual audit report which is our auditor’s opinion.  And it lines out what the 

responsibilities of management are for the financial statements, what the auditor’s responsibilities are and 

then gives our opinion.  It is a clean, unmodified opinion so there are no material misstatements.  And as a 

reminder as we go through, these financial statements are on an accrual basis and they include all 

activities of GO Topeka.  Where you see in the quarterly statements just the public funds, this includes all 

of the funds.  So we did audit all of that and again clean opinion, no misstatements so that is positive.  She 

just wants to point out highlights and will answer any questions if they have them. 

 

As we go through looking at the Statements of Financial Position the Assets, Liabilities and Net 

Assets, some things she wants to point out there are some pledges receivables, both in the current 

assets and the long term assets.  If you remember back on 2012, GO Topeka did do a campaign to 

raise some private dollars and under accounting standards when those pledges are received for 

multiple years, that is all booked into the year it was received as revenue. What is here is the 

receivables from those so $653,010 we expect to collect in 2014 and then the long term piece in 

Other Assets another $1.9 million is what we expect to collect in 2015 and after.  Those have all 

been discounted for amounts that may be uncollectible; there is also a present value discount 

calculation in that as well but those are what the current carrying value of those.  Back up in 

Current Assets, the Restricted Funds are $5.7 million that is two things.  One is the escrow 

account that was established as part of the MARS incentive.  They were required to fund some 

amounts in advance and those are the amounts that are held in there.  And then new in 2013 is an 

escrow for the air service grant funds they got in 2013 and they will be using in future years to 

Page 15 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
13 

 

meet minimum revenue guarantees.  So those funds are held in escrow and we will look at a 

footnote later that will have the breakdown between those two accounts that make up the total of 

$5.7 million.  So total assets at the end of 2013 are $23,600,570. 

 

Looking down at the Liabilities section, the first one there is the Deferred JEDO grant revenue.  

Those are funds that have not been spent yet.  JEDO has given approval to carry over those funds 

into future years so they are recorded as deferred revenue at this point.  There is also Deferred air 

service grant revenue, as I mentioned they did receive some funds under that air service grant that 

have not been spent yet and they were recorded as deferred revenue and they will be recorded 

when the funds are actually spent.  The Improvement and Training Incentives liability is $4.2 

million, those are amounts that have been earned for MARS that have not been paid yet.  MARS 

has earned some things for construction and training that have not been paid from the escrow 

account but they will probably mostly all of them in 2014, so we have that entire amount booked 

as a current liability.  Net Assets is the difference between the assets and the liabilities so net 

assets at the end of 2013 are $11,478,913.  Most of that is unrestricted, that is $8.8 million.  Of 

the unrestricted piece there is an amount that the Board has designated for future incentives, that 

is $7.9 million.  So that is the land that we hold for development and also some amounts that are 

in the escrow account from MARS that hasn’t quite earned yet but most of that is land that they 

hold for future incentives.  And then the Temporarily Restricted net assets is related to the 

pledges.  There is an implied time restriction in those funds because they will be collected in 

future years so they are showing there as temporarily restricted.   

 

On the next page for the Statement of Activities, it shows revenue and expenses.  If you look at 

the total column for 2013 there was $4.2 million in JEDO grant revenue recorded.  Those were 

revenues recorded when funds were actually expended so we expended $4.2 million under that 

grant.  There are also some private contribution dollars, there were some additional pledges 

received at the beginning of 2013 as revenues booked in that year.  The net assets released from 

restriction has no impact on the bottom line.  It just moves amounts between temporarily 

unrestricted but that is pledges that have been received, so once the funds are collected the 

restrictions are released and that just gets moved to the unrestricted bucket.  So for the year, total 

support and revenue was $4.5 million.  When we look at expenses there was $4.8 million in 

economic development.  That is going to fluctuate from year to year based on what we’ve got and 

what we have in incentives.  Almost $2 million of that for 2013 is related to the utility extensions 

that were paid for and expensed in 2013.  The rest of that is incentives that have been earned or 

land costs or those sorts of things.  We have got General and Administrative expenses of 

$237,699 and a small amount of fundraising expenses as well.  This gets you to total expenses of  

just over $5 million and a net change in net assets of -$557,180.   

 

On the next page, she mentioned before that these statements are on the accrual basis but what 

page 4, the Statement of Cash Flows shows you is more on a cash basis; where cash went to and 

where cash came from.   We have net cash provided by Operating Activities for 2013 of 

$141,299, so day to day operations generated this amount in cash.  We also then had some cash 

inflows from Investing Activities of $1,6 million.  Which results in a net increase in cash for the 

year at $1.7 million.  In the investing section a couple of things, the proceeds from sale of 

investments is just funds that we moved from the Money Market account into the Checking 

account for $1.3 million and then there is the proceeds of the land that was sold to Questar for 

$264,681.  The bottom half of this page is just a reconciliation from the change of net assets to 

operating cash, just a different way to show that section.   

 

 

 

Page 16 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
14 

 

We start with the Footnotes on page 5 of the audit report.  The first several pages are the 

accounting policies.  There are no changes to the accounting policies, no new ones to touch on 

but note those have not really changed from the last couple of years.  If you flip to Footnote #5 

Pledges Receivable, I mentioned the pledges earlier and that gives you a little more information 

as to when those pledges will be collected in 2014 and beyond and also what the uncollectible 

amounts would be and the present value discount.  Footnote #6 Land Held for Economic 

Development touches on the fact that they do obviously own a piece of land at Kanza Fire and 

Central Corssing.  They have the option to purchase additional land there and it does go in to 

explain the land that was sold to Questar which was 24 acres for $264,681.  Footnote #7 

Restricted Funds is what she mentioned before, this gives you the detail as to what’s in those two 

restricted escrow accounts.  The incentives one which is for MARS and the air service one.  So 

you can see the air service started in 2013.  The air service one was funded by $1 million from the 

Kansas Department of Commerce and then the Metropolitan Airport Authority also kicked in 

$250,000.  So that is what went into that fund.  There were some payments, some expenditures 

made in 2013 for some advertising but most of it will be spent going forward.  

 

Commissioner Cook asked, if he could for clarification ask, although it is administered through GO 

Topeka it is not actually funds from the sales tax. 

 

Ms. Padgett responded that is correct.  Transit Authority also has a federal grant that they are going to be 

using because we are matching those funds as well.  But these funds are either all from the State or money 

that the Airport Authority kicked in.  No sales tax dollars.   

 

If you go on to the next page, Footnote #9 Related Party Transactions, this does explain the 

reimbursements that GO Topeka makes to the Chamber of Commerce.  These are all for salary 

and benefits costs for GO Topeka employees.  GO Topeka itself has no employees.  All 

employees are paid by the Chamber under a common pay master agreement.  So this is the 

reimbursement from GO Topeka to the Chamber for the salary and benefit costs for GO Topeka 

employees.  The total for the year was $815,000.  We have broken out for you that JEDO Grant 

Funds paid $456,000 of that and the remaining $359,000 was paid by private dollars that were 

raised from the campaign.  And at the end of the year GO Topeka did owe the Chamber $84,636 

for those reimbursements that were paid after year end.  And it does go on to speak to that the 

Chamber leases some space that GO Topeka uses, so GO Topeka pays the proportionate share of 

that space that they do use and the expense for that was $77,625 for 2013.  The JEDO Grant is 

explained at the bottom of page 10 and at the top of page 11 that there was a carryover that was 

approved and so that is deferred revenue and that of the amount that is in deferred revenue 

$540,000 is deferred for the minority and women-owned business program.  And it does go on to 

say too that the contract was extended for another three years beginning in 2015.  Footnote #13 

Incentives mentions that there was $1.7 million in cash incentives paid during the year.  That 

includes both incentives paid to companies and also required funds that were deposited into the 

MARS escrow account.  And at the top of page 12 it outlines under current incentive contracts 

what they expect to pay out in 2014 and after.  These have not been earned yet by the companies 

so have not been reported as an expense or liability but if they do meet those, those are the 

amounts that they would expect to be paid under those current incentive contracts.  Footnote #14 

Utility Extension just mentions the amount that was expensed for the utility extensions in 2013.  

She will take any questions on the financial statements. 

 

Commissioner Cook stated as always there is always more information in the Footnotes than in the audit. 

 

 

Page 17 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
15 

 

Ms. Padget replied yes very true, it is very handy to have those.  There is a reason they are required.  The 

last thing she wants to go through with them is their required communication to the Board that they do 

have a copy of.  It is a required communication to the governing body.  When we do our audit we are 

working mostly with management.  This is their report to the Board as to how the audit went.  This is a 

very clean letter.  There are no concerns but she does want to walk them through some of the highlights.  

Under significant findings from the audit it does mention, as she has said before, that Footnote #2 

explains all the accounting policies, there are no new polices, no changes and that all transactions were 

recognized  in the proper period.  There are some estimates in the financial statements.  Not everything is 

known 100%.  One estimate we mention is the value of the pledges; the estimate of what we think is 

uncollectible, what the discount rate should be and as auditors we come in and just evaluate 

management’s assumptions and just make sure they are reasonable.  So we have done that.  We had not 

difficulties dealing with management during the course of the audit.  If you look at the top of the 2
nd

 page, 

we did make a couple of small adjustments during the course of the audit but they were very immaterial 

and they have all been corrected.  So that is reflected there.  There are no disagreements with 

management.  We have obtained from Mr. Kinsinger a representation letter which says what he gave them 

was correct, it was honest, it was truthful, they have given them everything that is needed to do the audits.  

That letter is dated May 1
st
.  We are aware of any other consultations with other accountants and any 

conversations we may have with Mr. Kinsinger during the course of the year is just part of our normal 

working relationship and not contingent on us being chosen as the auditors.  She wants to point out that 

there are not any internal control deficiencies to report.   

 

Public Comment: 

 

Jim Mullins, has been working with Americans for Prosperity (AFP) for a little over seven years.  He is 

retiring at the end of the year.  So the County Commission and the City Council is not going to see him 

for awhile and some of them are very glad to see that.  At AFP they have done a number of audits 

themselves, performance reviews is what we call them.  Performance reviews are different than an audit 

in a sense that performance review we try to find out what has the City or the County done with the 

money, have they used it properly and so on.  Part of the problem we have with this, and he would like to 

ask the accountant if he could is if they are using governmental accounting standards.   

 

Commissioner Cook indicated to Mr. Mullins that all questions should be directed to the Board. 

 

Mr. Mullins asked if the accountants used GASB standards (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) 

or GAAS standards (Generally Accepted Auditing Standards).  What the notes say is that they used 

auditing standard generally accepted in the United States.  He would just like to know which one they 

used. 

 

Commissioner Cook asked if the auditor could answer that question. 

 

Ms. Padgett stated the audit was done just under regular GAAS rules. 

 

Mr. Mullins indicated that the reason he brings it up is that they as City and County Commissioners are 

under different rules.  And one of the reasons why GASB uses those standards is because you can see a 

lot better on how taxpayer dollars are being spent.  Right here we are saying a lot of things are being spent 

but we don’t have any clue as to what they are being spent for.  For instance is under Footnote #13 

Incentives it states “less board designated employment incentive held in escrow”.  Who is that for?  Is it 

for one individual, is it for multiple individuals.  That is just an example that we don’t really know.  And 

this is taxpayer dollars they are spending.  It really would be nice to know are they spending those kind of 

dollars.  Under GASB you would better know who is getting that money and you would better know how 

they are meeting the criteria of being accountable and transparent with the people’s money.  And that is 

Page 18 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
16 

 

really what AFP is about, we are about transparency and accountability.  We have done performance 

reviews of Johnson County government, the City of Topeka, Sedgwick County, Lynn County. We find 

out a lot of things that they have done.  We haven’t hit those people over the head with it because we 

went to them and said look here are some things you are doing that you need to correct, under the radar, 

not to the media, but to them directly.  And they made those changes.  That’s a good thing because they 

want to be accountable just like we want them to be accountable.  So what he is suggesting to them is put 

GO Topeka next year when you have an audit, do it under GASB and make sure that they have the right 

accounting codes, a lot more codes to be able to determine whether those funds are being spent and who 

they are being spent on. 

 

Carol Marple stated she is not a CPA, she is just a taxpayer who pays this tax.  She has some questions 

and she wanted to ask how the auditing firm was selected. 

 

Commissioner Cook replied that he believes they would be selected by the GO Topeka Board for that 

purpose of the audit. 

 

Ms. Marple asked is it not the duty of JEDO to select the auditing firm.  Did she not read that in the JEDO 

By-Laws.   

 

Commissioner Cook replied we would need a moment to look that up and if we could answer that 

question at a later time. 

 

Ms. Marple indicated because GO Topeka is who is being audited but they select the auditor is what was 

just said to her.  Her other questions is the same firm that is auditing GO Topeka, are they also auditing 

the Chamber of Commerce?   

 

Commissioner Cook stated that he does not know the answer to. 

 

Ms. Marple replied that it was the same last year and she thinks that is not a good thing because they work 

so closely together.  Her other question is, she does read this, she doesn’t always understand it, but there 

was a letter included in the packet dated May 7
th 

from Mize Houser Auditing Firm and they said that  

 

“Management has elected to omit substantially all the disclosures ordinarily included in financial 

statements prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting.  If the omitted disclosures were 

included in the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the 

Company’s financial position and results of operations.  Accordingly, these financial statements 

are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters.”   

 

She doesn’t understand that and she would be happy if someone could explain it to her. 

 

Rich Eckert, Shawnee County Counselor stated that it is in the Interlocal Agreement and the contract with 

GO Topeka that,  

 

“GO Topeka shall also, at the conclusion of the Agreement year, order a certified annual audit by 

a certified public accounting firm selected by the JEDO, completed in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles relating to the finances related to this Agreement and make the 

audit results available to JEDO.”  (JEDO Contract C1-2013, 17d, Page 10) 

 

So JEDO does control who does the audit each year. 

 

Page 19 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
17 

 

Commissioner Cook replied that it does also indicate as to the manner in which the audit is done with the 

general accounting versus GASB. 

 

Mr. Eckert replied yes that is included in the same sentence.  So if they wanted to switch to GASB, we 

would have to amend this rule. 

 

Joseph Ledbetter also has a concern about this letter that was part of the file and he noticed that nobody 

up here asked questions about it.  He is going to put it into the record.   

 

“Management has elected to omit substantially all the disclosures ordinarily included in financial 

statements prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting.”  

 

We just heard on the last item which was an action item and the public should have been allowed 

to speak.  Anytime you are receiving reports, like an audit, that is an action item and the public 

has a right to speak on any of those items.  And he did ask for the right to speak.   

 

Commissioner Cook stated he would let Mr. Ledbetter know that prior to the commencement of the 

meeting he did consult with legal counsel and the presentation of a report is a nonactionable item and the 

JEDO rules of operation do indicate that the public is allowed to speak only on actionable items and so 

that does fall under the rules of operation.  

 

Mr. Ledbetter responded that since he is a lawyer he is going to dispute that.  It says presentation and then 

it says overview of 1
st
 Quarter Report, 1

st
 Quarter Financials.  1

st
 Quarter Financials is a report, it is not a 

presentation. 

 

Mr. Eckert indicated that we are at the four minute mark, so we would need a motion to extend or that 

would be the end of it. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter responded that he did not get four minutes. 

 

Mr. Eckert responded yes he did.  He hit four minutes and then the beeper went. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter replied that he has only been up here about one minute. 

 

Commissioner Cook asked if there was a motion to extend and for how much time. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter stated that he would like his time, four minutes. 

 

Councilman Schmidt moved to give Mr. Ledbetter an additional four minutes to speak.  Deputy Mayor 

Everhart seconded.  Following roll call vote, motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter stated that if he is discussing with the Chair the time stops.  That’s the rules we have 

always operated under.  It is very important that JEDO pick the auditor and that’s apparent.  He has a 

number of questions about the audit and he is going to start asking them on the record.  First off he wants 

to know if this firm does the 990’s for GO Topeka and the Chamber of Commerce.  Could he get an 

answer from their auditor please?  That is a question about public money.   

 

Commissioner Cook stated that this is for public comment not public question.   

 

Mr. Ledbetter replied it is a public question about public money.  So he is being overruled?  He can’t ask 

that question of the auditor through you?   

Page 20 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
18 

 

 

Commissioner Cook again stated this is time for public comment. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter stated so the Chair is ruling that question is about of order?   

 

Commissioner Cook again stated this is for public comment. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter replied so you just made a ruling that that question is out of order.  He wants to ask who 

did the 990’s because under the 990’s it talks about a management fee, not money paid back to the 

Chamber of Commerce for employees.  The management fee that is of record, the 990 that is of record 

talks about an $811,000 management fee paid to the Chamber of Commerce by GO Topeka in 2012.  He 

wants clarification about that management fee.  That is not reimbursement.  He wants to know if this audit 

included property taxes that are paid by GO Topeka with our public money.  He wants to know if they use 

appraisals that are public on the valuation of the land that they are holding.  He is asking a question.  Is he 

being overruled that that is out of line?  He wants to know how much space GO Topeka rents under this 

audit.  It says how much they are paying for it.  He wants to know the square footage and he wants to 

know how many employees are in that square footage.  Will the Chair ask that question of the auditor? 

 

Commissioner Cook responded that this is a time for public comment on the audit. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter replied ok that question is also out of order.  He is asking the audit firm if they are familiar 

with Publication 55 with the IRS about excess benefits paid to Board members, sorry to officers of 

nonprofits including the type that GO Topeka is.  Would the Chair ask that question, if they are familiar 

with that document?  Ok, nonresponsive.  He wants to know if, they say that GO Topeka has an open 

door policy, does JEDO have an open door policy to receive questions and get answers?  He is asking the 

Chair.  Does JEDO have an open door policy to the public to take questions and get answers?   

 

Commissioner Cook stated that again this is a time for public comment but as an aside he doesn’t know if 

there is a phone call that he hasn’t taken from Mr. Ledbetter.  And he would assume it would be the same 

with the rest of the members as well. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter asked if he will get the answers for us with our public money, sir. 

 

Commissioner Cook replied there is not a question he hasn’t answered for Mr. Ledbetter. 

 

Mr. Ledbetter stated that he is going to get a whole bunch of questions and he hopes he gets answers that 

are direct, more direct than he is getting tonight at this meeting because this is a public meeting and he is 

not getting answers to good questions that should be asked by the JEDO members themselves.  That’s it. 

 

Commissioner Cook asked if there is a motion regarding the audit or are there additional questions 

regarding the audit. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller asked if it would appropriate to make a motion to accept the audit. 

 

Commissioner Cook indicated that this would be the time now to make a motion to accept the audit. 

 

Councilwoman Hiller moved to accept the GO Topeka 2013 Financial Statements and Auditor’s 

Report.  Commissioner Archer seconded.  Following roll call vote, motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

Page 21 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
19 

 

ITEM NO. 7: Public Comment  

 

Carol Marple said she was say again, she is just a taxpayer who pays this money.  As she started to say 

before, after it was voted on to award Yantra some incentive money up to $100,000 she thought she 

would take the time, and she assumed that they had, to do some research on Yantra.  She spent 

approximately two hours.  She is not that computer literate so it probably took longer than it would take 

most people.  She was left with a lot more questions than she had answers for.  Most of her information 

came from the Secretary of State, Kris Kobach’s office.  And she also wants to make the comment on 

public comments she wants to read it to you, this is in the minutes.  Mr. Ledbetter asked of Mr. Kinsinger, 

he wanted to know if Yantra was a member, well actually Commissioner Cook asked Mr. Kinsinger if 

this company was present doing business with GO Topeka.  Mr Kinsinger replied no.  She would like to 

hand something out.  Because the answer is yes.  It was on the website of the Chamber of Commerce.  

Commissioner Cook asked Mr. Kinsinger that before this proposal was brought to the JEDO Board, the 

question from Mr. Ledbetter is whether or not the GO Topeka Board approved it.  Mr. Kinsinger said yes.  

As she said is anybody doing their homework?  She also wants to make the comment since it was not 

addressed here and she has asked questions before, she will report to them that the work on 77
th
 Street has 

started again.  She would like to know when the Kanza Fire Park will be shovel ready.  She would also 

like to say again that she thinks JEDO, Shawnee County, the City of Topeka sets a very poor example 

when they own land and do not take care of it.  You try to enforce laws that people must take care of their 

property.  She thinks that should go for them as well.  She also looked that on the cash statement they 

spent $378.72 that was publication for the expense of the RFP.  We had an RFP out there that was worth 

over $15 million dollars and we spent $378 to publicize it?  She does not think we allowed enough time.  

She would have to question again how well it was publicized.  That is really all she has to say. 

 

Joseph Ledbetter stated that we know from looking at the minutes that were presented tonight of the last 

meeting that the RFP was never received or voted on.  That is problematic.  We know from the minutes, 

according to the County Counselor, that it was publicized on various websites including to an 

organization, he checked, was across the Stateline, so he is not going to comment on the cost, but he is 

going to comment that it was public and because it was a public RFP, when that RFP was accepted, the 

terms of that RFP were accepted.  Like it or not.  GO Topeka is going to have to be transparent with this 

money, like it or not.  We were told tonight that there is an open door policy at GO Topeka but we don’t 

know when their meetings are.  We were told there was a GO Topeka public policy of being open yet we 

don’t read their minutes, we can’t get their minutes, we don’t know what they do with $5 million of pubic 

money every year.  Veterans are suffering all over this community, there are 16,000 of them in this 

county, GO Topeka doesn’t have an answer for how to deal with veterans and their economic woes. He 

has brought this up to GO Topeka people before.  We have a growing poverty rate, up 50% in one decade 

in this city.  Where’s the answer from GO Topeka?  There isn’t one.  We are not even allowed to go to 

their meetings.  And when we come to these meetings we are not allowed to comment.  We ask where the 

money is, it’s on the quarterly financials which is an action item that they are receiving.  They need to do 

a better job at structuring these agendas.  There are more action items imbedding in some of these items 

you are calling presentations.  We get to talk about those at City Council meetings.  He has done it many 

times.  He has asked for many expenditures from them and he has gotten answers and he should get the 

same courtesy as a citizen at these meetings and get direct answers as to where that money is going.  We 

have shown tonight that again this money is not transparent.  Do not vote for a sales tax extension unless 

you like money that is not transparent, that is public money being spent willy-nilly, we don’t know where, 

we can’t get a record, we can’t get minutes, we have no clue where it went and we have audit reports we 

can’t get answers on.  This is not transparent.  This money has been proven, by this meeting to not be 

transparent.  Again and again it is not transparent.  The public does not get its questions answered. 

 

 

Page 22 of 77



 

05/14/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes 
20 

 

Mayor Wolgast stated he would like to say to the JEDO Board members that he has confidence in this 

JEDO Board.  He thinks it does an appropriate job of handling the affairs.  There are always things that 

perhaps can be done differently but he feels confidence in the JEDO Chair and the voting members.  He 

has a confidence in GO Topeka and in the economic development and the activities and we can always 

look at things differently but he thinks there are many things that are done very well and he wants to 

acknowledge that fact. 

 

NO FURTHER BUSINESS appearing the meeting was adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 

Page 23 of 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

ITEM #4 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 24 of 77



Sales Tax Receipts:

City of Topeka 3,555,113.69$               

Shawnee County 3,618,435.30                 

Interest Income 233.35                            

   Total Receipts 7,173,782.34                 

Disbursements:

City of Topeka

  Topeka Blvd Bridge Debt Service 3,240,650.00$      

3,240,650.00                 

Shawnee County 

  County Bridges 1,500,000.00        

  SE 45th St - Adams to California 3,481,686.87        

  NW 46th St & N Topeka Blvd 1,410,439.86        

6,392,126.73                 

GO Topeka 2,499,999.96                 

Publication Expense for RFP 378.72                            

Bank Charges 73.25                              

   Total Disbursements 12,133,228.66              

Net Receipts (Disbursements) (4,959,446.32)               

Bank Balance - January 1, 2014 6,897,910.67                 

Bank Balance - June 30, 2014 1,938,464.35$              

Note:  This is a cash basis report

Prepared by Betty Greiner

Joint Economic Development Organization

Cash Statement

As of June 30, 2014

Page 25 of 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

ITEM #5 

  

Page 26 of 77



Page 27 of 77



Page 28 of 77



Page 29 of 77



Page 30 of 77



Page 31 of 77



Page 32 of 77



Page 33 of 77



Page 34 of 77



Page 35 of 77



Page 36 of 77



Page 37 of 77



Page 38 of 77



Page 39 of 77



Page 40 of 77



Page 41 of 77



Page 42 of 77



Page 43 of 77



Page 44 of 77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

ITEM #6 

  

Page 45 of 77



1 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Economic Development 
 

2
nd

 Quarter 2014 
 

Report to JEDO 
 
  

Page 46 of 77



2 
 

 
 

2nd Quarter- 2014 
 
GO Topeka staff worked in the second quarter of 2014 to achieve the annual goals set and to ensure 
continued economic development success for Topeka and Shawnee County.   
 
The New Business Attraction program during the second quarter met with 128 site location consultants 
and corporate real estate professionals in face to face meetings.  Additionally, staff hosted one in-
community site visit. During the second quarter, staff worked with 17 new prospects resulting in two 
formal proposals. The current portfolio of New Business Attraction projects, at the end of the second 
quarter includes 43 projects, capturing potential for 7,177 new direct jobs and $418,160,000 in new 
capital investment.  Leads and prospects are being developed on an ongoing daily basis. 

 
The Existing Business and Retention program made 38 company visits during the 2nd Quarter of 2014, 
and is currently working on 15 active projects, which based on data received to date, represents 
$82,210,000 in new capital investment, and 835 direct new and retained jobs.   Work continues toward 
meeting with, and educating local businesses of resources available within the community. 
 
Workforce Development initiatives continues to build strong relationships with area primary employers 
and training partners.  In the 2nd Quarter the Food Manufacturers class (M-TECH) graduated 26 students.  
To date 19 students have been hired by area employers.   Goodyear Tire & Rubber, Innovia Films and 
PTMW requested a similar class be created in order to serve their industries (M-TECH #2).  Again, 
Washburn Tech was awarded the grant from the Workforce AID program through Kansas Department of 
Commerce.  The money provided through the AID program will provide scholarships to students 
interested in attending the course.  Similar to the M-TECH program, students completing the course will 
provide area manufacturers with a trained and ready workforce that can immediately begin working on 
the manufacturing floor with little training by the company.   
 
Work continues in the development of a high school education program where manufacturers go into 
the classroom and present to students about careers in manufacturing.  This group conducted ‘test’ 
presentations to 4 classes at Auburn Washburn High School.  The feedback received will be incorporated 
into the presentation slides.  Plans are underway to begin presenting to high school juniors in order to 
educate them about careers in manufacturing. 
 
The Entrepreneurial and Minority Business Development Department is experiencing growth in the 
number of individuals inquiring about starting and/or expanding their small businesses.  We provided 
one-on-one technical assistance to 38 new clients, resulting in 122 total clients’ year to date.  Funding 
inquiries increased as well.  The pipeline currently holds steady with nine active prospects.  Our second 
quarter participation in workshops, seminars and other events provided maximum exposure for the 
Department.  Through community outreach, marketing, presentations and education events we were 
able to reach an additional 1,311 individuals.   
 
The following report gives much more detail as to all of the accomplishments and results of GO Topeka 
staff for the second quarter 2014.  

 

Page 47 of 77



3 
 

New Business Attraction  
Team Leader: Molly Howey 

 
GOAL 1:  Create substantial prospect activity through suspect lead generation and servicing 

new qualified projects that have a high level of interest in Topeka/Shawnee County.  
 
Goal 1.1:  Development of 55 new prospects (viable project generation, sites/buildings proposal 

submitted) 
 
 Progress 1st Quarter 

 4 new prospects 
 
Progress 2nd Quarter 

 17 new prospects 
 

Goal 1.2:  12 new qualified projects (formal incentive proposals submitted to company) 
 

Progress 1st Quarter 

 No formal incentive proposals  
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 Two formal incentive proposals 
 
Goal 1.3:  235 personal contacts with Site Consultants and National Corporate Realtors over 

course of year (face to face meetings) 
 

Progress 1st Quarter 

 Face to face meetings with 14 site location consultants and national corporate 
realtors at Industry Week Roundtable, KC SmartPort and one-on-one meetings.  
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 Face to face meetings with 128 site location consultants and national corporate 
realtors at Industrial Asset Management Council, KC SmartPort, Expansion 
Management Roundtables and one-on-one meetings. 

 
GOAL 2:  Generate new community and individual wealth and prosperity through new capital 

investments and new/retained primary jobs that pay the average wage or higher for 
Shawnee County and provide health insurance for the employees. 
 

Goal 2.1:  Attract new capital investment (new and expanding primary employers) 
 

Progress 1st Quarter 

 As of March 31, 2014 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of New Business Attraction 
Prospects/Projects includes: 
29 Projects  
$270,900,000 Potential capital investment 
 

Page 48 of 77



4 
 

 As of March 31,2014 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of Existing Business 
Expansion Prospects/Projects Includes: 

14 Projects  
$85,010,000 Potential capital investment  
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 As of June 30, 2014 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of New Business Attraction 
Prospects/Projects includes: 

43 Projects  
$418,160,000 Potential capital investment 
 

 As of June 30,2014 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of Existing Business Expansion 
Prospects/Projects Includes: 

15 Projects  
$82,210,000 Potential capital investment  

 
Goal 2.2:  Attract new primary jobs (new and expanding primary employers) 

 
Progress 1st Quarter 

 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of New Business Attraction Prospects/Projects 
includes: 

4,502 potential direct jobs 
 

 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of Existing Business Expansion Prospects/Projects 
Includes: 

241 potential direct jobs  
 
  Progress 2nd Quarter 

 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of New Business Attraction Prospects/Projects 
includes: 

7,177 potential direct jobs 
 

 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of Existing Business Expansion Prospects/Projects 
Includes: 

126 potential direct jobs  
 

Goal 2.3:  Increase the per capita income in Shawnee County over time by adding new jobs to the 
community that pay at least the Shawnee County average or their specific industry 
average wage. 

Current average: $41,912 (2013 Fourth quarter, most recent available 
 Source: Kansas Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics) 
  
Progress 1st Quarter  

 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of New Business Attraction and Existing Business 
Expansion Prospects/Projects includes: 

Page 49 of 77



5 
 

Average projected wage of $41,772 based on data received from 
Prospects/Projects to date 
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 Current GO Topeka Portfolio of New Business Attraction and Existing Business 
Expansion Prospects/Projects includes: 

Average projected wage of $42,088 based on data received from 
Prospects/Projects to date 

 
Additional Attraction Actions Implemented in 1st Quarter 2014 

 All marketing materials updated for 2014 

 All ads placed in national publications and online sources for direct contact with target 
markets for 2014 

 Sales and marketing plan calendar for 2014 developed 

 Hosted three in-community site visits 

 Continued development of Regional Partnership with Lawrence and Manhattan-.  
Strategic planning session held to further develop the marketing mission and outcomes 
for the region 

 Continued revisions and updating of SwiftSite –Sites and Buildings database 

 Attended Industry Week Roundtable in the Rockies and met with eight site consultants 
in on-on-one meetings 

 Attended KC SmartPort board meeting 
 

Additional Attraction Actions Implemented in 2nd Quarter 2014 

 Began to build framework for website redesign 

 Created RFP for new marketing materials 

 Hosted one in-community site visit 

 Attended Roundtable in the South and met with eight site consultants in one-one-one 
meetings 

 Attended KC SmartPort board meeting 

 Attended Industrial Asset Management Council conference 

 Hosted meeting with Team Kansas for 19 consultants in the New York & New Jersey 
area 

 Attended Business Facilities LiveXchange  

 Attended Southern Economic Development Council conference 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 77



6 
 

Existing Business and Workforce Development 
Team Leader: Jo Feldmann 

 
Goal 3:  Increase contact with existing businesses and top employers and provide support for 

primary employers to retain and/or add jobs. Provide education and training for 
workforce to support existing business, with an emphasis on primary employers that 
will enhance their operations and sustainability in Topeka/Shawnee County. 
 

Goal 3.1:  At Least 140 business visits including top 40 employers (mandatory to qualify). Visit 
inputs will be recorded on a consistent format and reported to the CEO and VP on a 
quarterly basis. 

 
Progress 1st Quarter 

 57 business visits were conducted in the first quarter of 2014.  Of those visits, 28 
consisted of major employers. 
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 38 businesses visits were conducted in the second quarter of 2014.  Of those 
visits, 24 were major employers 

 
Goal 3.2:   Provided assistance to companies needing help.  Assistance includes providing 

resources, referrals, problem solving, and expansion assistance. 
  

Progress 1st Quarter 

 Staff is currently working to assist 14 companies of which 5 were opened in the 
first quarter of 2014. 
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 Staff is currently working to assist 15 companies of which 3 new projects were 
opened in the second quarter of 2014 
 

Goal 3.3:   Continue WorkKeys testing of high school seniors and produce a report that measures 
skills attainment against the previous year’s testing. 

 
Progress 1st Quarter 

 WorkKeys testing has been completed for 2013-2014 school year.  Testing 
scores are being compiled and will be presented to each school district in late 
May at the post WorkKeys Counselor Meeting. 
 

Progress 2nd Quarter 

 Staff continues to market the WorkREADY! certificate to hiring managers.  This 
certificate shows the level of skill a potential candidate possesses, therefore 
allowing the hiring manager to hire a better match for the position. 
 

 During the HR Director’s meeting several of Shawnee County’s major employers 
reported they could not ask for the WorkREADY! certificate due to current 

Page 51 of 77



7 
 

contracts with the government.  However, they all agreed that the certificate 
would be helpful in selecting a more qualified candidate/employee.   

 
Additional Existing Business and Workforce Development Activities Implemented in 1st Quarter 2014: 

 
Progress 1st Quarter:  
 

Existing Business: 
•Staff continues meeting with Athene in order to facilitate both the Rapid 
Response Team meetings, as well as connect existing businesses to the planned 
job fair in order to hire exiting employees.  The company is still determining its 
exit strategy for the Topeka site. 

 
•The KEDA Legislative Day was held in Topeka during the first quarter.  Staff was 
able to hear possible changes to the incentive programs offered by the State.  

 
Workforce Development: 
•Staff attended a two day Workforce Summit in January.  This workshop is 
focused on workforce issues in Kansas/nation.  During the summit staff is able 
to network with other communities providing assistance in workforce 
development.  

 
•The Society of Manufacturing Engineers chapter was closed in January.  The 
group was not able to build membership to the levels needed in order to 
support the manufacturing community.  The existing board will continue to 
meet and determine if they can develop an educational program in the 
classroom to educated students about careers in manufacturing. 

 
•The food manufacturers group worked hard in the first quarter to finalize the 
components of the training course.  The RFP was released with Washburn Tech 
winning the contract.  The course allows students the opportunity to hear from 
the companies in the class, and then allows the student to shadow in the 
company before interviewing for open positions. 

 

•Staff continues to attend monthly Society of Human Resource Managers 
(SHRM) meetings.  During these meetings staff is able to learn more about 
issues HR Directors face when hiring new employees.  This group also allows 
staff to educate individuals about possible programs/resources to assist them in 
their hiring efforts. 

 
•Washburn Tech and GO Topeka began discussions regarding a scholarship fund 
for students interested in pursuing high demand career training.  Work will 
continue in the second quarter to finalize details of the scholarship. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 52 of 77



8 
 

Additional Existing Business and Workforce Development Activities Implemented in 2nd Quarter 2014: 
 

Progress 2nd Quarter:  
 

Existing Business: 
•After notification of the extension of the main water line in Central Crossing 
Commerce Park, staff scheduled meetings with all businesses in the park in 
order to notify them of the work.   Staff also worked toward gaining approvals 
from Home Depot in order to provide easements, and stage equipment and 
supplies on their site. 
 
•During visits regarding the water line extension, staff also alerted each 
business of the upcoming bridge closure on 49th Street.   

 
• Staff visited Reser’s Fine Foods corporate headquarters in Beaverton, Oregon.  
We were able to learn how the community can best support the company as it 
continues to grow in the region. 

 
• Bimbo Bakeries plant manager recently accepted a new position in Kansas 
City.  Staff has met with the new plant manager, Dennis Sample.  Work will 
continue toward supporting the company with their operations.   

 
Workforce Development: 
•Staff held the 2014 HR Directors meeting in the second quarter with ten 
companies attending.  Topic covered included: WorkREADY! certificate, BEST 
Training (soft skills), transportation needs for employees, and hiring workers 
with disabilities/Veterans. 

 
•M-TECH program has expanded to include general manufacturing (M-TECH #2).  
Washburn Tech was able to win the AID Grant from the Department of 
Commerce and currently has 31 students enrolled in the course.  This new 
course will support all manufacturing in the Topeka/Shawnee County region. 

 
•M-TECH program for food manufacturing companies continues to graduate 
students from its program.  As of June, the program has graduated 26 students 
with 19 students being placed into jobs. 

 
•Marketing the M-TECH program has begun with targeted groups.  Staff 
presented both programs to the EMBD Council in the second quarter.  
Brochures were distributed to its members as staff was able to answer 
questions about the class. 

 
•Staff and participating manufacturers have been working on a presentation for 
Junior and Senior high school students to learn more about manufacturing as a 
career option.  Test presentations were made to 4 junior/senior classes at 
Auburn Washburn High School.  During the presentations staff was able to ask 
for feedback on the slides presented in order to provide better engagement 

Page 53 of 77



9 
 

with future students.  Work will begin in revising the slides in order to start 
presentations in all area high schools in 2014-2015 school years. 
 

Entrepreneurial and Minority Business Development  
Team Leader: Glenda Washington 

 
 

Goal 4:  Increase the knowledge and capacity of minority- and women-owned businesses as 
well as starting or growing Shawnee County entrepreneurs through education, 
training, development and support services. Entrepreneurial & Minority Business 
Development  (EMBD) and Topeka Shawnee County First Opportunity Fund (TSCFOF) 
will work to build capital led and educational strategies to fill critical gaps for the 
underserved entrepreneur, by increasing the number of loans made, providing 
entrepreneurial education and assisting creation of entrepreneurial jobs.  

 
Goal 4.1   Increase training/educational/entrepreneurial opportunities annually for minority, 

women-owned businesses, entrepreneurs and small businesses.  
  
Progress 1st Quarter 
 
 Attendees received direct advice from two Tax Professionals at the Small Business Tax 
Facts Workshop: What Small Business Owners Should Know When Filing 2013 Small 
Business Income Taxes.  This workshop provided insight to business owners on the new 
tax laws and offered an opportunity for questions and answers.   
 
The Quarterly Breakfast Buzz introduced growth strategies for new and existing 
businesses owners.    
 
Who Owns the Ice House empowers the individual participant to embrace the 
entrepreneurial experiences of others and begin the emersion process of developing the 
necessary skills to grow his/her business.   This class will graduate eight participants in 
April 2014.      
 
The Childcare Business Builder Series kicked off in February.  This course provides the 
business foundation classes for owners or potential owners of the Childcare Facilities.  
The classes conducted, by Childcare Aware, covers Record Keeping, Money 
Management, Marketing Contracts and Policies and Legal Issues and Insurance.  There 
are 10 individuals graduating in this class during the Second Quarter. 
 
We are working to create a stronger entrepreneurial eco system.  Collaboration with our 
partners has allowed us to aggressively plan outreach some excellent outreach 
programs for Second Quarter events.  These programs include –  
 

 2014 Small Business Awards Recognition 

 Women’s Initiative – Women Making A Difference 

 Leadership/Lunch and Learn – Three Part Leadership Series 

 Small Business Legal Clinic with Washburn, Washburn SBDC and the EMBD 

Page 54 of 77



10 
 

 Expanding the Robotics Program for adult training opportunities 

 
Progress 2nd Quarter 
 

 In April, entrepreneurs attended a workshop entitled “Doing Business with the 
Government “, co hosted by GO Topeka and the Small Business Development 
Center.  This workshop provided instruction and direction for those seeking to 
expand their business base and to become a certified government contractor.   

 

 The April series continued with a mini business Leadership Series.  The series was 
primarily held for entrepreneurs, beginning and mid-level managers.  The three part 
series offered attendees an opportunity to access and improve their leadership 
skills.  A few of the topics covered included:  Reframing Leadership; Pursuing 
Priorities and Managing Explosive Growth and Momentum.   

 

 Also in April, A Small Business Legal Clinic presented in conjunction with Washburn, 
Washburn SBDC and the EMBD covered learning the basic legal steps of setting up 
your small business and the common legal pitfalls to avoid. 

 

 To better gauge the temperature of our small business community, in May an 
electronic survey was conducted by GO Topeka’s Entrepreneurial and Small 
Business Development Department.  The survey gathered data that would further 
enhance the offerings to Shawnee County’s small business owners.  

 

 In May we celebrated 2014 Small Business Week by hosting our 2014 Small 

Business Awards Recognition.  More than 300 attendees were in attendance. 
 

 We continued building a strong network for small business by introducing the 

Women’s Initiative.  The open forum offers women of all stature an opportunity 
to network and offer mentorship to each other.  

 
 

Year to Date Reports 
 
Kauffman Classes 

Ewing-Kauffman Statistics 

Markers 
Current 
Year 

 Entrepreneurial Courses Delivered 2 
 Total Clients Graduated 18 
 Overall Graduation Rate 100% 
 Minority Graduates 56% 
 Women Graduates 72% 
 Low Income Target Market Graduates 61% 
 

Page 55 of 77



11 
 

 
 
 

Seminars and Workshops 

Seminars, Workshops, and Events 

Markers Current Year 
 # Small Business Events 15 

 Total Entrepreneurs Served 1725 
 

    
Technical Assistance Provided 

Technical Assistance 

Markers Current Year 
 Total Clients Assisted 129 

 % Clients Priority Population 66% 
  

 

Robotics Program 

Markers Current Year 
 Students Served 19 

 % Minority 79% 
 % LITM 85% 
 

   

    First Opportunity Fund 

Markers Current Year 
 # Loans 0 

 $ Awarded $0 
 Jobs Retained/Created 0 
 Loan Prospects                        9 
  

 
Small Business Job Growth 

Jobs and Growth 

Markers Current Year 
 Total Business Starts/Growths 4 

 Total Jobs Created/Retained (FTE) 5.5 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56 of 77



12 
 

 
 
 
Social Media Impression 
 

 
 
 

Goal 4.2   Increase the number of applications received by TSCFOF during FY-2014 year. 

  

Progress 1st Quarter 
  
 The TSCFOF met in February.  At this meeting the committee revisited the current loan 

structure and identified strategies to incorporate an enhanced outreach plan.  As a 
result of this meeting the loan committee agreed, that in order to be a competitive 
lender and provide the necessary support to the targeted population, they would 
eliminate the current loan cap of $10,000.  All future requests will be reviewed and the 
loan amount would be approved (up to $100,000) based on credit and other lending 
criteria being met.  The line of credit has also been increased to a $15,000 limit.  This 
approach will make the Loan Fund more attractive to Shawnee County Entrepreneurs.  
There have been several loan inquiries; however, only five individuals have been given 
applications.   
 
Progress 2nd Quarter 
 
As the economy realigns, more individuals are looking for ways to expand their business 
or to start a new business.  Hence, we have seen an increase in the loan inquires and 
applications.  Currently there are approximately nine business in the pipeline (either 
strong inquires or applications pending).  In the Fall, ads will appear in TK Magazine and 
785 Magazine.  We are speaking with other media outlets to enhance our campaign.     
 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

Social Media Reach by Channel 

Twitter 

LinkedIn 

Facebook 

Page 57 of 77



13 
 

 
 
Goal 4.3 Collaborate with local and state agencies and corporations to host a Purchasing and 

Procurement Conference. 
 

Progress 1st Quarter 
 

Co hosted at Procurement Workshop with Washburn Small Business Development 
Center entitled Procurement Basics.  The workshop was presented by Jason Porch, 
Director, the Procurement and Technical Assistance Center. We are currently working 
with the Department of Commerce to coordinate a larger procurement event that offers 
more insight and education on doing business with the government.   
 
Progress 2nd Quarter 

 
The 2014 Business Opportunity Fair has been scheduled November 6.  This full day 
event, Co-hosted by KDOC and EMBD, is being promoted throughout the State of 
Kansas.   

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 58 of 77



Page 59 of 77



Page 60 of 77



Page 61 of 77



Page 62 of 77



Page 63 of 77



Page 64 of 77



Page 65 of 77



Page 66 of 77



Page 67 of 77



Page 68 of 77



Page 69 of 77



Page 70 of 77



Page 71 of 77



Page 72 of 77



Page 73 of 77



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

ITEM #7 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 74 of 77



Page 75 of 77



Page 76 of 77



Page 77 of 77




































